UNITED

NATIONS C E R

Di st r. GENERAL

International Convention CERD O SR. 1157
o . 23 Cctober 1996
on the Elimination
ENGLI SH
of all Forms of Original: FRENCH

Racial Discrimination
COVM TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON

Fortv-ninth i on

SUMVARY RECCRD OF THE 1157t h MEETI NG

Held at the Pal ais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Monday, 5 August 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON
CONTENTS
ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (cont i nued)

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMVENTS AND | NFORVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Eighth, ninth, tenth, eleventh and twelfth periodic reports of Bolivia

Tenth, eleventh, twelfth and thirteenth periodic reports of Brazi

This record is subject to correction

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Cormittee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly
after the end of the session

GE. 96- 17655 (E)
The nmeeting was called to order at 3.05 p. m

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (agenda item 3) (continued)

1. The CHAIRMAN, referring to the tinmetable for the consideration of reports
submitted by States parties, said that the Bureau reconmended the postponenent
until the Committee's fiftieth session of consideration of the reports of
Panama and Guatemal a, together with that of the Bahanas, which had promised to
submt its report by 15 Novenber. Consideration of the report of Gabon woul d
be postponed until the fifty-first session. Wth regard to Lebanon, a
representative of that country would be present on 9 August and woul d be asked
verbally to agree to the postponenent of his country's report until the
fiftieth session on the understanding that it would reach the Comrittee by the




CERD/ C/ SR. 1157
page 2

end of Novenber. |If the representative of Lebanon said that woul d be
difficult, the question of the date of submission of the next report could be
reconsidered. During his visit he would al so have an opportunity to di scuss
the previous report with the rapporteur and gain a better idea of what the
Conmi ttee expected of the next report.

2. M. ABQOUL-NASR said that in view of the difficulties sone countries had
in submitting their reports, particularly if they had no representation in
Ceneva, the Committee should not adopt too threatening a tone towards them

3. The CHAI RMAN said that the Governnent of the Bahanmas had witten to
informhimthat its report would be subrmitted late. In the case of Panamm, it
was the State party itself which had requested the postponenent of

consi deration of the report.

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMVENTS AND | NFORVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 5) (continued)

Eighth, ninth, tenth, eleventh and twelfth periodic reports of Bolivia
(CERD/ C/ 281/ Add. 1; HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 54)

4, At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the Bolivian del egation

took seats at the Conmttee table.

5. M. LEVA PATINO (Bolivia) said that the report subnmitted to the
Conmittee, which described all aspects of the situation of human rights in
Bol i vi an society, was self-explanatory.

6. M. LECHUGA HEVIA (Country Rapporteur) said that the report gave a frank
account of the socio-economni c probl ens which sonetinmes nmade it difficult to

i mpl ement the Convention, but like the previous reports, it left nany

guesti ons unanswer ed. Linguistic probl ens, which the Commttee on the

El i mination of Discrimnation against Wnen had reported in 1991 in the case
of Bolivia in particular, were an obstacle to the defence of the rights of the
i ndi genous people and to comuni cati on between the various social groups. In
conbination with illiteracy, that was necessarily a hindrance to the

i mpl ementation of the Convention. |In order to determ ne which popul ation
groups were most discrimnated against, therefore, the Committee woul d need
nore preci se data on the ethnic conposition of the population. Wen the
previous report had been submitted, it had been stressed that linguistic

di fferences did not necessarily mean racial differences, but information on
that question was still inadequate. The geographical isolation of certain
comunities was another problemto be taken into account in assessing the
situation of all population groups. The Governnment of Bolivia adnmitted that,
despite all its efforts, problens still existed for certain isolated ethnic
groups, such as the Guarani people, but it mght be asked what precisely was
bei ng done or planned to remedy those probl ens.

7. It also seened that the situation of children in Bolivia left much to be
desired. Since nore than one third of the population lived in poverty, it was
obvi ous that adopting constitutional or |legislative neasures was not enough
and that other nore practical neasures were required. The forward-Iooking
initiatives of the Mnors' Code, the 1993 Judicial Oganization Act, the
decrees recogni zing special rights and territories for the indi genous peopl e,
conpul sory teaching of human rights in schools, mlitary colleges and police
academ es, and the Popular Participation Act should be wel coned. It was,
however, surprising that the Educational Reform Act, the purpose of which was
to do anay with all inequalities in education and which the authorities
presented as a wholly progressive initiative, should have given rise to strong
protest on the part of teachers and pupils. It would be interesting to hear
how t he del egati on expl ained that fact.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1157
page 3

8. The establishment of the National Organization for Children, Wnen and
the Famly, a Human Rights Departnent in the Mnistry of Justice and an
Onbudsman shoul d further enhance the observance and pronotion of fundanental
rights. But despite all those institutional and |egal inprovenents, practica
probl ems remai ned, notably with regard to equality between nen and wonen,
equal ity before the | aw and access to the courts. It was clear that the
protection of the rights of the Quechua and Aymara ethnic groups, for exanple,
requi red the adoption of specific neasures to supplenent declarations of
principle, as the Committee had been stressing since the early reports.

9. A nunber of gaps also renained in respect of article 4 of the Convention,
since the Bolivian Penal Code did not classify racismor any other form of
raci al discrimnation as an offence. Were article 3 was concerned, Bolivia
had supported the United Nations resol uti ons condemi ng apartheid in

South Africa when it had still existed, but inits Genera

Recomendati on Xl X (47) the Cormittee had nade it clear that racia

segregation was not restricted to apartheid in South Africa and that the
States parties should continue to exercise extrene vigilance in that regard.
Further progress was still necessary in the inplenmentation of articles 6 and 7
regardi ng access to the courts, education, culture and information. Wth
regard to enploynment, the ILO Committee responsible for considering governnent
reports had noted that 1992 Bolivian |egislation on public service enpl oynent
contai ned no provisions prohibiting discrimnation, as |1LO Convention No. 111
requi red. Regarding |ILO Convention No. 169 (Indigenous and Tri bal Peoples
Convention), the same Commttee had noted a certain degree of conflict in
Bol i via between respect for cultural diversity and a tendency to absorb
traditional institutions into the dom nant cul tural systens.

10. The recent confrontations between police and students or coca-| eaf
producers raised certain questions with regard to article 5. \Where



CERD/ C/ SR. 1157
page 4

coca-growi ng was concerned, the Conmittee would |ike an assurance that the
conflict with the indigenous conmunities in question had no racia
connot at i ons.

11. Lastly, the Comm ttee wel comed the frank manner in which the Bolivian
authorities had described their difficulties and their concern to continue
trying to resolve the problens that arose in a nmulti-ethnic and nmulticultura
cont ext .

12. M. van BOVEN said that the special neasures the Bolivian Governnent had
taken in support of the indi genous people, especially in recognizing their

| ands, seened to be in keeping with the requirenents of article 2,

paragraph 2, of the Convention. However, he would |like to know how t he
Bolivian authorities reconciled recognition of the indigenous territories with
the prohibition of racial segregation contained in article 3. He would al so
like details on Decree No. 22,612, nentioned in paragraph 20 of the report,

whi ch shoul d nake it possible to designate indi genous ethnic groups and
peoples. M. Lechuga Hevia had rightly pointed out that Bolivia had not done
enough to penalize incitenment to racial discrimnation or to inplenent

article 4, which was in fact binding. Lastly, the Bolivian Governnment had
admtted frankly that certain categories of persons did not have access to the
penal system (para. 44 of the report) or were marginalized fromthe education
system and certain social services, but had not said what specific neasures
were envisaged to remedy that situation. The next report should provide nore
information in that regard.

13. Ms. ZQU DECI expressed regret that the report said nothing about the
steps taken to renmedy the dranmtic situation of the Guarani popul ation
nmentioned in paragraph 22 of the report. Paragraph 27 (b) of the report
stated that the Bolivian Penal Code did not classify racismor any form of
soci al discrimnation as an offence. She asked whether the Bolivian
Governnent was planning a revision of the Code in order to bring |egislation
into line with international |aw

14. M. DIACONU noted that the Bolivian Constitution contai ned sone very
progressive provisions very nuch in keeping with the Convention. He also
noted that the Educational Reform Act provided that no distinctions should be
made on the grounds of the ethnic group, culture or region of the person
concerned. He welcomed the fact that the Convention was part of the Bolivian
| egal systemand could be directly invoked in the courts. |t remained to be
seen precisely what the relationship was between Bolivian | aw and t he
Convention and which instrunent applied when a | aw was at variance with the
provi sions of the Convention.

15. Merely nentioni ng several indigenous peoples did not give the Comrittee a
clear idea of their place in Bolivian society. For that the Comm ttee woul d
need to know what proportion of the popul ati on each people represented. It

woul d al so need specific exanples to show that the country had set out on the
road to the elimnation of racial discrimnation opened by the Constitution
and that it had enacted laws for that purpose, as enjoined by article 2,
paragraph 1 (d), of the Convention. Sone action had already been taken to
that end, such as the delinmitation of indigenous territories whose resources
were exploited by the indigenous peopl e occupying them but he was surprised
that the Quaranis, for exanple, whose difficult situation the report

recogni zed, did not possess such a territory, especially follow ng the
findings of the Human Ri ghts Commi ssion of the Chanber of Deputies in 1994

16. He associated hinself with M. Lechuga Hevia and M. van Boven in calling
for measures under article 4 of the Convention to conbat and punish incitenent
to racial discrimnation. Referring to paragraphs 28 and 29 of the report,

whi ch described the nurder of Myrnon mssionaries fromthe United States and

t he sentence handed down agai nst the nurderers, he asked whether simlar acts
had not been conmmitted agai nst indigenous Bolivians and how Bolivian justice



CERD/ C/ SR. 1157
page 5

had reacted in those cases. The matter was related to another of the
Conmittee's concerns - the inplenmentation of article 6 of the Convention and
the administration of justice in Bolivia. It was clear that many Bolivians
had no access to justice, if only because of the |anguage barrier

17. Lastly, he wished to know whet her there were school s where indi genous
pupils were taught their native | anguage as well as Spani sh.

18. M. de GOUTTES associated hinself with the previous speakers in wel comn ng
t he frankness which characterized the report under consideration. He

enphasi zed the clarity of the core docunent (HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add.54), which
cont ai ned a conprehensive picture of the social and econonic situation in
Bolivia and set out the problens to which the observance of human rights gave
rise. He noted that paragraph 258 of the docunent referred to the human
rights violations perpetrated by the special police against peasant coca-| eaf
producers in the context of the canpaign against drug-trafficking. That was a
probl em caused by the clash of two pressing requirenents: the need to conbat
drugs and the need to protect the rights of persons under investigation
Simlarly, paragraph 39 of the periodic report bluntly listed the factors

whi ch characterized the blatant inequality of Bolivian citizens in the eyes of
the law. According to paragraph 44 of the report, it was not only specialists
but al so the general public who denounced the fact that it was inpossible for
poor peopl e and non- Spani sh speakers to have access to justice.

19. Referring to the inplenmentation of article 4 of the Convention, he in
turn noted that the provisions of the Penal Code nentioned in paragraph 27 of
the report in no way represented the donestic legislation that article 4
required to be adopted. Paragraphs 28 and 29 of the report, which described
puni shrent for racist acts, gave only a single exanple of the sentencing of
the perpetrators of such acts, which, as M. D aconu had correctly said, was
not significant. Since the crine punished had in any case been committed by
terrorists against United States nationals, the exanple was even amnbi guous.

20. Par agr aphs 45-48 of the report, which described the inplenentation of
article 7 of the Convention, did give useful information on the ains of the
Educati onal Reform Act of 7 July 1994 - popul ar participation and

cross-cul tural education. However, they gave no details of any neasures taken
in support of the nost di sadvantaged ethnic groups in the areas of education
and cul tural devel opment.

21. M. WOFRUM reverting to the question of education, asked, in view of
the information contained in paragraphs 12 and 13 of the core docunent
(HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 54), what had been done to facilitate the access of the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1157
page 6

i nhabi tants of rural regions and indigenous people to primary, secondary and
hi gher education. In that connection "education" nmust not be equated wth
"assimlation".

22. Referring to the inpact study carried out with the participation of the
regi on's indi genous organi zation (para. 18 of the report), he asked for a
clarification of the sonmewhat vague use of the word "participation" and

i nqui red whet her the inhabitants of the indigenous territories were protected
with regard to mning, which was a State prerogative, as they were in the case
of road-construction and forestry.

23. M. BANTON, speaking as a nmenber of the Conmittee, said that he was aware
of the difficulties that some States encountered in providing figures and
statistics. As stated in paragraph 8 of the General Cuidelines regarding the
Form and Contents of Reports, in the absence of such information the Conmittee
woul d be happy to have qualitative data and subjective eval uati ons.

24, Sone experts had raised the question of the inequality suffered by the
ethnic groups, in education for exanple. It might be said that conbating
inequality did not come within the Conmittee's purview but, given that its
mandate was to identify the causes of discrimnation, it should consider cases
i n which those causes were to be sought in inequality in respect of education
and devel opnent.

25. M. LECHUGA HEVIA, recalling that in 1992 the second |bero-Anerican
Sunmit had approved the setting-up of a fund to pronote the progress of the
i ndi genous popul ations of Latin Amrerica and the Cari bbean, asked what the
results of that initiative had been in Bolivia.

26. M. CH GOVERA, referring to paragraphs 10 and 11 of the report, pointed
poi nt out that although the Convention was indeed part of Bolivian domestic
law, it was not of itself enforceable. He asked how it was inplenented in
practice.

27. M. PATINO (Bolivia) assured the Conmittee that practical measures had
been taken in all the areas nentioned; he would give details the follow ng
Wednesday.

28. The del egation of Bolivia wthdrew

Tenth, eleventh, twelfth and thirteenth periodic reports of Brazi
(CERD/ C/ 263/ Add. 10; HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 53)

29. At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the Brazilian
del egation took seats at the Conmittee table.

30. M. VERGNE SABA A (Brazil) said that the report of Brazi
(CERD/ C/ 263/ Add. 10), to which an independent research institute of the
University of S&8o Paulo, the Centre for Studies on Violence, had contri buted,
contai ned a conprehensi ve description of the neasures and policies adopted up
to May-June 1995. He would therefore linit hinself to commenting on certain
aspects and supplying nore recent information of relevance to the work of the
Commi ttee.

31. Al t hough Brazil had al ways repudi ated raci smand racial discrimnation
and rel ati ons between the various racial groups were not conflictual, the
soci al and econonic situation of the black or col oured popul ati on was
general ly worse than that of whites, and discrimination on racial grounds was
not unknown. H s CGovernnent had accordingly taken steps to inprove the living
conditions of blacks and col oured people, who accounted for 44.2 per cent of

t he popul ation. Brazil had the second bi ggest black population in the world,
after Nigeria. H s Government attached great inportance to inproving the
situation of that population, not only by recognizing the role of blacks in



CERD/ ¢ SR. 1157

page 7
the practical and cultural construction of Brazil, but also by inplenenting
pol i ci es whi ch woul d guarant ee equal access to the advantages of citizenship
for everyone. It had already succeeded in bringing down inflation, the

first victins of which were the poor, the majority of them black or col oured.
It was currently endeavouring to carry out various inmportant constitutiona
reforns in the fiscal, administrative and social security spheres, for
exanpl e, and was al so taking positive action in support of persons of African
origin who suffered nmost from social inequalities.

32. On 20 Novenber 1995, an intermnisterial working group, coordi nated by
M. Santos, a menber of the Brazilian del egation, had been set up to prepare
policies for the advancenent of the black population. Since February 1996,
the group had been neeting regularly and had set up subgroups to define and

i mpl ement policies in the following areas: information (race or col our would
be taken into account in official docunments and statistics, so as to provide a
statistical basis for the fornulation of policies specifically targeting the
bl ack popul ation); |abour and enpl oynent (nmeasures to inprove inplenmentation
of 1LO Convention No. 111 and to conbat discrimnation in enploynment);

conmuni cati on (promotion of an appropriate i mage of blacks in the nmedia and in
official public relations and cultural programes); education (pronotion of
non-di scrim nation and tol erance in the school system by including those
issues in primary syllabuses and a choi ce of textbooks enphasizing the history
and struggles of the black people in the construction of the Brazilian nation
Wi t hout stereotypes or discrimnation); international relations (dissem nation
abroad of an image of Brazil as a multiracial society and the expansion of

rel ati ons between Brazil and the countries of Africa, in particular the

Por t uguese-speaki ng countries, and the Cari bbean); agrarian policy
(recognition of the Quilonmbo communities’ right of ownership of the |and they
occupi ed and i ssue of property titles by the State); affirmative action
(survey of the experience of other countries in that area and how it could be
adapted to Brazilian society); advancenent of black wonmen (especially the
qguestion of reproductive rights); racismand violence (conpilation of
anti-discrimnatory |legal provisions at the federal and State |evels, and
possi bl e formulation of new |l egislation), health (inclusion of race or col our
in birth and death certificates, consideration of the health situation of the
bl ack popul ation, formul ation of a national progranme to conbat sickle-cel
anaem a, which mainly affected the black population, and efforts to conbat
myoma and hi gh bl ood pressure); black religion and culture (fostering of the
cul tural production of the black popul ation and protection of Afro-Brazilian
cultural and religious manifestations); sport (inplenentation, with the
support of the National Institute for the Devel opnent of Sport, of projects
geared to young bl acks); and lastly, studies, research, science and technol ogy
(pronotion of studies on race-related i ssues by higher academ c and research
institutions).

33. Among t he mechani sms set up by the working group the sub-group for health
had been the first to produce concrete results. Anong other things, it had
organi zed a working visit to the Kalunga community in Coias (the |argest and
nost isolated of the remaining groups of Quilonbos); the aimhad been to

achi eve a proper bal ance between sustai nabl e devel opnent and the cultura
preservation of the communities in question. Qher noteworthy events had

i ncl uded the | aunching of a National Human Rights Pl an of Action on

13 May 1996, the visit in June 1995 of the Special Rapporteur on Contenporary
Forms of Racism Racial Discrimnation, Xenophobia and Rel ated Intol erance,
cooperation with African countries (establishnment of the Zone of Peace and
Cooperation in the South Atlantic (ZPCAS) and the Conmunity of

Por t uguese- Speaki ng Countries (CPLP)), and the adm ssion of refugees from
Africa, mainly Angol a.

34. Wth regard to the indigenous popul ations, his Governnent was firmy
conmitted to the denmarcation of indigenous lands in Brazil, as provided for in
the Constitution. Mrre than one tenth of Brazilian territory - over

900, 000 square kilometres - was set aside for the permanent usufruct of the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1157
page 8

i ndi genous popul ation, totalling some 330,000 citizens, and the work of
demarcati on was continuing. The Governnent had al so requested fromthe

Nati onal Foundation for Indians (FUNAI) further information which took account
of the opinions of anthropol ogi sts.

35. The National Plan of Action for Human Ri ghts conprised specific
activities in support of the indigenous popul ations, particularly with regard
to health (adoption of a differentiated nodel taking into account the special
features of the indigenous popul ations) and education (provision of specific
and differentiated schooling respectful of the social and cultural val ues of
each particular group), and al so the dissenination of information on their
rights through the nmedia and in schools, lack of information being one of the
causes of viol ence agai nst indi genous peoples. Another goal of the Nationa
Plan was the ratification of I1LO Convention No. 169.

36. M. de GOUTTES (Country Rapporteur), noting that Brazil had not subnmitted
a report since March 1987, wel cormed the resunption of the dial ogue between
that country and the Conmmittee.

37. Unfortunately, he had been given only the English version of the
thirteenth periodic report of Brazil. He neverthel ess, recognized that

that report, together with the core docunent of 10 January 1995

(HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 53), contained sone in-depth, detailed and interesting

i nformati on on the general denographic, social, political, econom c and
institutional framework within which the Convention was inplenented. At the
sane time, however, sone of the information on the inplenmentation of
articles 2-7 of the Convention seened too theoretical, too exclusively
juridical and limted to the anal ysis of enactnents.

38. The country’s denographic profile (dealt with in paras. 20-46 of the
thirteenth periodic report and paras. 5-7 of the core docunment) was perhaps
one of the nmain keys to the situation in Brazil and the attendant problens.

In that connection, he noted that some of the figures in the thirteenth report
were quite out of date: a total population of 147,305,524 according to the
1990 census (para. 20), whereas according to the nost recent infornmation, the
popul ati on of Brazil was about 160 million. Did the Brazilian del egation
possess any nore recent statistics? The data al so needed to be harnoni zed:
the figure in the core docunment was 146.1 nillion inhabitants, according to
the 1991 national census.

39. A second inportant characteristic of Brazil was the ethnic and racia
pluralismof its population (para. 20 of the thirteenth report, para. 6 of the
core docunent). It would be useful to the Conmittee to have sone additiona
expl anati ons concerning several indicators: the increase in the col oured
popul ation resulting fromthe |large nunber of interracial nmarriages - although
t he nunber of narriages between blacks and whites remai ned | ow, the increase
in the urban popul ation, the unequal distribution of racial groups throughout
the country, the increased |ife expectancy - snaller anong the urban

popul ation, and lastly the steady decline in the fertility rate.

40. Anot her feature of Brazil was the inequalities anong ethnic and racia
groups (paras. 23-46 of the report and acconpanying statistical tables). He
wel coned the frank treatment in the report of the disparities which stil
existed in all social fields despite the Governnent’s efforts: schoo

enrol ment and levels of education, illiteracy rates, |ife expectancy,
occupation, inconmes, and famly living conditions. He noted that the
thirteenth periodic report and the core docunent referred to only five ethnic
groups, (whites, coloureds, Negroes, Indians and, as a ninor group, Asians),
and sai d nothi ng about other categories of the population (inmgrants,
foreigners of various origins, for exanple). It would be useful if the
Brazilian del egati on woul d provide sone information in that regard.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1157
page 9

41. The 1995 core docunent al so gave a good overview of Brazil's econom ¢ and
political context. Paragraphs 8-13 referred to the stabilization progranmme
launched in July 1994 to steminflation (the Real plan) and inportant reforns
in the economic field and in respect of social security and the civil service.
Sone of the figures given were very positive but nore recent economc
infornmation drew attention to certain difficulties about which the Conmittee
would Iike to have nore details: difficulties related to the ongoing reforns
with regard to tax policy, social welfare, the restructuring of the banking
sector and agrarian reform difficulties deriving fromdeteriorating public

fi nances and the unfavourabl e econom ¢ situation in Latin Anerica since the
Mexi can crisis; and lastly, difficulties inherent in poverty and socia
inequalities in general

42. Par agr aphs 14-24 of the core docunment contained a useful sumary of
Brazilian history and the country’s political and administrative organi zati on.
The Conmittee woul d, however, |ike additional information on the politica
fallout fromthe recent social difficulties in Brazil: the ministeria
reshuffling after the peasant disturbances and several reported nmassacres,
particularly that of 17 April 1996 in Paréd; pressure from opposition novenents
hostile to the reform programe, strengthened by the prospect of the

Cct ober 1996 muni ci pal el ections and the 1998 presidential elections;

i nci dents between the supporters of President Cardoso and | eaders of the
opposi tion, etc.

43. He woul d al so like to know what point had been reached in the process of
revising the Constitution. Bearing in mind the statenent in the core document
that fundamental rights could be subject to restrictions in a “state of
defence” or “state of siege”, he wondered in what circunstances such
situations could be proclained. Was it possible in such conditions to inpose
restrictions on all fundamental rights and freedons? And how could the
provisions on the state of siege or defence be reconciled with those in
paragraph 4-1V of article 60 of the Constitution, which prohibited any
amendnent of the basic |aw serving to restrict individual rights? In addition
to a recapitulation of legislation, it would al so be desirable for the
Conmittee to have specific information on the nunmber and ki nd of the

i nvestigations carried out by the Council for the Defence of Human Ri ghts of
the Public Prosecutor’s Departnent or by the General Office for the Defence of
I ndi an Ri ghts.

44, The Brazilian periodic report contained several interesting pieces of
information relating to the provisions of article 2 of the Convention, whereby
all States parties undertook to elim nate racial discrimnation. Wth regard
to the new Constitution of 5 Cctober 1988, he noted the efforts of the
Legislature to pronote the right to racial and ethnic equality. He also drew
attention to a nunber of innovations. The new Constitution made racism an

i nprescriptible crime, whereas before it had been regarded only as a crimna
m sdenmeanour. Under the new text, the provisions regarding fundanental rights
and guar ant ees becane binding and i medi ately applicable to any private or
public person and could no | onger be the subject of any restrictive amendnent.

45, Par agraphs 54 and 70 of the report, enunerated a whole series of |aws
whi ch, together with the Constitution, made it possible to conbat or punish
racism The information given in those paragraphs was certainly useful to the
Conmittee but it needed to be backed by figures and specific exanples of the
ef fective inplenentation of those laws. The Conmittee would |like to know the
poi nt reached in the proposed refornms nmentioned in the report, in particular
the bill to include in the CGrimnal Code a section on crines against the

equal ity and honour of persons and the two bills nmentioned in paragraph 74 of
the periodic report, namely draft resolution 43 (1991) concerning the

est abl i shnent of a congressional Human Rights Committee and Bill No. 4338/93
regardi ng nmention of a person's colour in docunments and public procedures. It
woul d al so be interesting to know the stage reached with regard to the current
proposal to establish a National Comm ssion for Equality of Opportunities



CERD/ C/ SR. 1157
page 10

within the Mnistry of Justice (para. 75 of the report). And what was the
situation regarding the Consel ho do Programa Comuni dade Solidéaria nmade up of
representatives of civil society referred to in paragraph 75 of the report?
Lastly, what had been the results of the establishment of a “special police
station” for racial crimes referred to in paragraph 66 of the report, which
was supposed, according to that report, to have begun operating in June 19937

46. Wth regard to neasures taken against groups or bodies of a racia
character, the Conmittee would |ike nore information on the |egislative
provi sions which made it possible to ban such organi zati ons and puni sh their
nmenbers, the nunber of prosecutions brought and penalties inmposed on such
organi zati ons, and the various types of racist organization which existed in
Brazil. A ong with the neo-Nazi groups, were there other bodies, targeting
the Indian, black or peasant popul ations, for exanple?

47. It would also be interesting to know whet her steps had been taken to
support organi zati ons and novenents conbating racism in particular the
various anti-racist novenents set up followi ng recent racist incidents in
whi ch bl acks, Jews and inhabitants of the north-east of Brazil had been
attacked. In addition, further details should be given on the role of the
churches, the Bar and the trade unions in defending the poorest popul ations
and the nature of their relationships with the authorities.

48. Wl coming the positive special nmeasures adopted to protect and pronote

t he nost di sadvantaged racial or ethnic groups (paras. 168 and 187 of the
periodic report), he acknow edged that policy towards those popul ati ons was
not easy to define, since it nmust reconcile two apparently contradictory
objectives: preserving their culture and traditions and bringi ng about their
gradual integration into national life. Nevertheless, the anal ysis of
governnent action in paragraphs 175 et. seq. of the report made it possible to
identify the priority areas: the protection of Indian | ands coveted by mning
corporations, prospectors and farners of all kinds, a matter that was,
noreover, linked to the protection of the Amazoni an forest; the demarcation of
those lands; the regularization of Indian property rights; the expul sion of

cl andestine settlers; the protection of |ndian popul ati ons agai nst
intimdation, extortion and acts of violence by farmers, mercenaries in the
pay of |andowners, and even nenbers of the military police in sonme cases; and
t he general social protection of Indian populations, in the fields of health
and education, preservation of their |anguage and integration into Brazilian
society. The Committee therefore booked forward with interest to any

i nformati on that the Brazilian del egation could provide about the future
programe of action in support of the Indian populations. It would also like
specific information on interventions by the authorities having specia
jurisdiction with regard to the protection of the rights of the indi genous

i nhabi tants, and particularly federal judges. Another inportant question was
whet her the Brazilian Government had now ratified the | LO Convention
concerni ng | ndi genous and Tri bal Peoples which, according to the periodic
report, was currently being exam ned by Congress, or whether it was preparing
to do so?

49, Wiile noting the determ nation of the Brazilian authorities to conbat the
di scrimnation to which the black popul ation continued to be subjected, the
Conmittee woul d like to know nore precisely what the CGovernnent envi saged
doing in the future to deal with the main instances of such discrimnation in
the fields of education and enpl oynent.

50. Still in connection with article 2 of the Convention, the Conmittee woul d
like specific information on the steps taken by the Governnent to ensure
greater protection for the rights of peasant popul ations, as well as

i nhabitants of the favelas and street children

51. Regarding article 4 of the Convention, paragraphs 54, 70, 134, 146
and 147 of the periodic report contained useful information on |egislation



CERD/ CJ SR. 1157
page 11

designed to conbat genocide, crinmes of hatred, racist propaganda or the

di ssem nati on of racist ideology, discrimnation against consuners,

di scrimnation by public officials, and in particular the various of fences of
a racial nature targeted in Law No. 7,716 of 5 January 1989 especially
discrimnation in the field of | abour and enpl oynment and refusal to provide
services. However, the Committee did not yet have all the information it
needed to be assured that Brazilian penal |egislation was fully in accordance
with the provisions of article 4 of the Convention as a whole. Thus, there



CERD/ ¢ SR. 1157
page 12

was no clear indication in the report whether or not there were |aws punishing
acts of racial violence or incitement to such acts, or insults or defamation
of a racial nature.

52. Wth respect to article 5 of the Convention, paragraphs 86-147 of

the periodic report indicated the nany provisions of the Constitution

and | aws whi ch guaranteed the exercise of the rights enunmerated in

paragraphs (a) to (e) of that article. Athough it was conplete fromthe

| egal standpoint, the list suffered fromtwo shortconmings: first, being too
theoretical, it did not enable the Committee to judge how the provisions were
i mpl enented. Specific exanples of the effective inplenentation of certain
laws (in particular, those concerning genoci de, abuse of authority, racial

di scrimnation by public officials, discrimnation in enploynent, refusal to
provi de services in establishnments open to the public, racial discrimnation
in the nedia and discrimnation agai nst consuners) would be welconme. |In the
case of the principle of equality of enployment and access to public office,
the Conmittee would |ike accurate statistics on the nunber of Indians and

bl acks in Congress, the civil service, the arny, the police, the |ega

prof ession and education. It would also be interesting to know whether or not
the fact that illiterates were not eligible indirectly prevented persons from
t he poorest sectors of society fromstanding for election and it would be
useful for the Committee to have information on soci o-econom c indicators of
non-integration for the nost di sadvantaged groups, in particular, in the case
of I ndians and bl acks, the unenpl oynment rate, the percentage of honel ess,
norbidity and nortality rates, the percentage of persons in prison, and the
illiteracy rate. |In that connection, what was the extent of phenomena such as
del i nquency, drug addiction, alcoholism prostitution and suicide within those
groups?

53. Despite the exi stence of rmuch legislation on the protection of

di sadvant aged groups, many social inequalities remained in practice, as the
periodic report frankly admtted. Wth regard to the civil rights enumerated
in article 5, paragraph (d), of the Convention, paragraph 174 of the report
noted that article 6 of the Gvil Code, which had been drafted in 1916 and was
still in force, considered Indians to be incapable of performng certain acts
of civil life and subjected themto a regime of tutelage which, according to
the article, would cease as they adapted to the country's civilization. Even
t hough the 1988 Constitution now recogni zed the | egal capacity of the Indians,
article 6 of the Code shoul d be repeal ed.

54, Wth regard to the right to security of person and protection agai nst

vi ol ence (Convention, art. 5 (b)), several infornmation sources had drawn
attention to intimdation, acts of violence and summary executions perpetrated
agai nst peasant popul ations, poseiros (| andl ess peasants) and |Indians by
nercenaries in the pay of |and owners, but also by death squads and even
nmenbers of the mlitary police. The Conmittee would Ilike specific information
fromthe Brazilian delegation on those particularly disturbing devel opnents.

55. In connection with article 6 of the Convention, the periodic report
contai ned sone interesting information on the | aws guaranteei ng the protection
of persons against racial discrinmnation, but there were few statistical data
on the effective utilization of available renedies. Moreover, the figures
provi ded were unusually low, for which there were two possible expl anati ons:
either the victinms of the raci smbrought no conplaints because they were not
sufficiently well informed of their rights or had no confidence in the police
and the judicial systemin their country, or the conplaints were not
successful because the police authorities did not attach enough inportance to
of fences of a racial nature. Also, the figures were inconplete because they
applied only to certain offences and dealt only wi th penal neans of recourse.
It was essential, therefore, that the Government should, in its next report,
provide nore conplete statistics on conplaints, investigations, cases not

foll owed up, convictions and acquittals by the courts, on reparation granted
in respect of all categories of offences of a racial nature, on the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1157
page 13

utilization of the other renedi es nentioned in paragraph 41 of the core
docunment, and on the nunber of interventions by the special police responsible
for the prevention and punishment of racismand by the Council for the Defence
of Human Rights. It would also be useful to know whether, in Brazil, the
human ri ghts associ ations or the groups defending certain segnents of the
popul ati on coul d thensel ves bring charges or use other neans of recourse on
behal f of persons whose interests they represented. Lastly, the Commttee
woul d I'i ke to know whether the Brazilian Governnment envi saged meki ng the
declaration provided for in article 14 of the Convention. By doing so, it
woul d clearly denonstrate its deternmination to inplenment the Convention to the
full

56. Wth regard to article 7 of the Convention, the periodic report contained
replies to several questions put by the Conmittee in 1987 concerni ng nmeasures
to protect and pronote the cultural rights of the Indian and Afro-Brazilian
popul ations. The Committee would note in that regard the many positive
nmeasures and initiatives that had been taken. Neverthel ess, profound

i nequalities remained between whites, on the one hand, and bl acks and I ndi ans,
on the other, in particular with regard to levels of literacy and school and
university education. It was therefore very inportant for the Brazilian
Governnent to keep the Conmittee fully infornmed of the efforts it continued to
devote to the struggl e against the racial and ethnic discrimnation which
still existed in those areas. It would also be interesting to have specific

i nformati on on the steps taken by the authorities not only to pronote the
principles of the Convention, but also to bring to the attention of the public
Brazil's periodic reports and the Conmittee's observations on them And it
woul d be advi sable, as the Human Rights Comittee had pointed out inits

concl usions of 24 July 1996, for the Brazilian Government to i nformthe
Conmittee on the Elimnation of Racial Discrimnation of the steps taken to
pronote human rights education and a spirit of interracial tolerance anmong

t hose responsible for |aw enforcenent, in particular nmenbers of the mlitary
police, who were too often involved in violent incidents.

57. M. van BOVEN said that he did not understand why a separate chapter of
the report was devoted to the situation of the Indian popul ations, thus giving
the inmpression that they were a separate group fromthe rest of the
popul ati on. He wondered whet her that approach was in accordance with the
spirit of the Convention.

58. In addition, the Conmittee had received a great deal of infornmation on
legislative instrunents but little on specific cases, in particular cases that
had conme before the courts. He hoped that succeeding reports woul d devote
nore attention to the judicial decisions to which such cases had given rise.



CERD ¢ SR. 1157
page 14

He was not sure that the laws in force corresponded to the provisions of the
Convention, in particular those of article 6, referring to the reparation to
which the victinms of discrininatory nmeasures were entitled.

59. Lastly, it would be interesting to know whether the Brazilian authorities
were willing to publish the reports prepared pursuant to the Convention and

t he concl udi ng observati ons of the bodies set up under the various human
rights instrunments.

The neeting rose at 6 p.m




